
 

NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
 
 
 
 
 
17 March 2023 Our Ref Hitchin Committee/28 March 2023 
 Contact. Committee Services 
 Direct Dial. (01462) 474655 
 Email. committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk 
 
 
To: Members of the Committee: Councillor Ian Albert (Vice-Chair), Councillor Clare Billing (Vice-

Chair), Councillor Raj Bhakar, Councillor Val Bryant, Councillor Sam Collins, Councillor 
Elizabeth Dennis-Harburg, Councillor James Denselow, Councillor Keith Hoskins MBE, 
Councillor Chris Lucas, Councillor Nigel Mason, Councillor Kay Tart and Councillor Richard 
Thake 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN OF A  

 

MEETING OF THE HITCHIN COMMITTEE 
 

to be held in the  
 

CHRISTCHURCH, BEDFORD ROAD, HITCHIN, SG5 1HF 
 

On 
 

TUESDAY, 28TH MARCH, 2023 AT 7.30 PM  

 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Jeanette Thompson 
Service Director – Legal and Community 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk


 

 
 

**MEMBERS PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU DOWNLOAD ALL  
AGENDAS AND REPORTS VIA THE MOD.GOV APPLICATION 

ON YOUR TABLET BEFORE ATTENDING THE MEETING** 

 
 

Agenda 
Part l 

 
Item  Page 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
   
2.   MINUTES - 8 DECEMBER 2022 

To take as read and approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Committee held on the 8 December 2022. 

(Pages 5 
- 14) 

   
3.   NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS 

Members should notify the Chair of other business which they wish to be 
discussed at the end of either Part I or Part II business set out in the agenda. 
They must state the circumstances which they consider justify the business 
being considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
The Chair will decide whether any item(s) raised will be considered. 

 

   
4.   CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Members are reminded that any declarations of interest in respect of any 
business set out in the agenda, should be declared as either a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest or Declarable Interest and are required to notify the Chair 
of the nature of any interest declared at the commencement of the relevant 
item on the agenda.  Members declaring a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
must withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the item. Members 
declaring a Declarable Interest, wishing to exercise a ‘Councillor Speaking 
Right’, must declare this at the same time as the interest, move to the public 
area before speaking to the item and then must leave the room before the 
debate and vote. 

 

   
5.   HITCHIN BID - UPDATE 

To receive a verbal update from the Hitchin BID Manager. 
 

   
6.   HERTFORDSHIRE CONSTABULARY - UPDATE 

To receive a verbal update from Hertfordshire Constabulary on their wok in 
the Hitchin area. 

 

   
7.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

To receive petitions, comments and questions from the public. 
 

   
8.   GRANT APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNITY UPDATE 

REPORT OF THE POLICY AND COMMUNITIES MANAGER 
 
To provide the Committee with an update to ensure Members are kept 
informed of the work of the Community Engagement Team. 

(Pages 
15 - 24) 

   



 

9.   CHURCHGATE PROJECT UPDATE 
To receive a verbal update from the Chair on the progress of the Churchgate 
project. 

 

   
10.   WARD MATTERS AND OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS - MEMBERS' 

REPORTS 
To receive any verbal reports from Members regarding Ward matters and 
Outside Organisations. 

 

   
11.   POSSIBLE AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Chair to lead a discussion regarding possible agenda items for future 
meetings. 

 

   
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

HITCHIN COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING HELD IN THE HITCHIN TOWN HALL, BRAND STREET, HITCHIN, SG5 1JE  
ON THURSDAY, 8TH DECEMBER, 2022 AT 7.30 PM 

 

MINUTES 
 
Present:  Councillors: Councillor Ian Albert (Chair), Councillor Clare Billing (Vice-

Chair), James Denselow, Keith Hoskins, Chris Lucas, Nigel Mason and 
Richard Thake 

 
In Attendance: Danny Pearson (Assistant Community Engagement Officer), James 

Lovegrove (Committee, Member and Scrutiny Manager) and Frank 
Harrison (Environmental Health Manager) 

 
Also Present: At the commencement of the meeting approximately 8 members of the 

public, including registered speakers. 
 
 

91 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Audio recording – 17 seconds 
 
Before the meeting proceeded, Councillor Ian Albert requested that, following the death of 
Councillor Judi Billing MBE on the 24 November 2022, Members and public join in a minute 
silence in remembrance. Following the silence, the Chair allowed Members to provide a brief 
tribute and the following Members provided comments:  
 

 Councillor Keith Hoskins 

 Councillor Richard Thake 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Val Bryant, Elizabeth Dennis-Harburg, 
Kay Tart and Raj Bhakar. 
 
Councillor Sam Collins was absent.  
 

92 MINUTES - 11 OCTOBER 2022  
 
Audio Recording – 7 minutes 32 seconds 
 
Councillor Ian Albert, as Chair, proposed and Councillor Keith Hoskins seconded and, 
following at vote, it was: 
 
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 11 October 2022 be 
approved as a true record of the proceedings and be signed by the Chair. 
 

93 NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Audio recording – 8 minutes 05 seconds  
 
There was no other business notified. 
 

94 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Audio recording – 8 minutes 07 seconds 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

 
(1) The Chair welcomed those present at the meeting, especially those who had attended 

the Town Talk and those in attendance to give a presentation.  
 
(2) The Chair advised that, in accordance with Council Policy, the meeting would be audio 

recorded.  
 
(3) The Chair drew attention to the item on the agenda front pages regarding Declarations 

of Interest and reminded Members that, in line with the Code of Conduct, any 
Declarations of Interest needed to be declared immediately prior to the item in question. 

 
(4) The Chair advised that the Churchgate consultation was now live and encouraged 

attendees to complete the questionnaire.  
 

95 HITCHIN BID MANAGER  
 
Audio recording – 8 minutes 58 seconds 
 
Mr Tom Hardy, Hitchin BID Manager, thanked the Chair for the opportunity to address the 
Committee and gave a verbal presentation regarding the issues and activities in Hitchin Town 
Centre and drew attention to the following: 
 

 The BID would be happy to support any plans by the family of Councillor Judi Billing to 
commemorate her memory in Hitchin.  

 The Christmas lights had been changed and added to from last year. The icicles on Sun 
Street are particularly effective and they will explore installing these in other parts of town.  

 There had been good feedback received regarding the ‘Welcome to Hitchin’ motif.  

 The Christmas tree was in place, with lights provided by Councillor Ian Albert and the 
baubles provided by the community.  

 The Christmas light switch on event had been well attended.  

 There were lots of family friendly activities planned on the weekend of 17th and 18th 
December.  

 The Snowman trail was running through to the 20th January, and had so far been 
extremely popular and even featured in The Guardian newspaper.  

 A Christmas edition of the H-Town newspaper was available, with a gift guide included to 
promote local shopping.  

 Instagram promotions had taken place detailing the safety measures in place in town to 
keep people safe.  

 There had been around £27k of H-Town Pounds sold to date, with lots being returned by 
businesses and the BID will monitor and track where the H-Town Pounds are being spent. 
There were around 84 shops and eateries signed up to the scheme.  

 In 2023 the aim was to be more business focussed and look to run events outside of the 
main town centre.  

 The BID wanted to support others to put on events in the town, by assisting with 
paperwork and practicalities.  

 There was a new Front of House Manager, who was responsible for dealing with the 
Information Centre shop.  

 The new website, www.visithitchin.com, was in the final stages of development.  

 A camera was to be installed on the roof of Osinsky’s providing an online live-stream of 
the Market Square.  

 Events were being planned to celebrate the King’s Coronation, with a big screen planned, 
but this was awaiting details from Buckingham Palace before being confirmed.  

 There was an ongoing campaign to encourage bus and tour operators to visit the town and 
the BID was working with companies to include the Town Centre as part of their 
excursions.  

Page 6



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

 The BID had provided workshops and 1 to 1 support to business, to help support these 
through the cost of living crisis by finding was to save money.  

 The vacancies in Hitchin stoop at around 2%, but it was unsure how this would be 
impacted in 2023.  

 There was lots of promotion ongoing to encourage businesses and customers to shop 
local this Christmas.  

 The renewal ballot for the new 5-year term of the BID was due in April 2024 and 
consultation on this process would begin in February 2023.  

 The BID would support the Council to introduce pay-on-exit schemes in car parks, to 
encourage people to spend more time in the town.  

 
In response to a point raised by Mr Hardy regarding pay-on-exit car parking, Councillor Keith 
Hoskins noted a trial of pay-on-exit parking was due to take place at Woodside Car Park in 
early 2023. The Executive Member for Planning and Transport was also a keen supporter of 
pay-on-exit schemes.  
 
The Chair thanked Mr Hardy for his update to the Committee.  
 

96 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Audio recording – 21 minutes 00 seconds 
 
The Chair invited the Assistant Community Engagement Officer to provided Members with an 
overview of grant funds remaining.  
 
The Chair invited Ms Hannah Lane to provide a presentation on behalf of the National 
Childbirth Trust (NCT) in support of their grant application and advised of the following: 
 

 NCT was best known for providing antenatal support courses across the country, with an 
aim to ensure that no parent is left feeling isolated and to support parents through the first 
1000 days. 

 There was a wide network of NCT branches with around 5000 volunteers who provide the 
support through groups and events.  

 This branch covered the Hitchin, Baldock and Letchworth areas.  

 It was volunteer led and free of charge for users.  

 An application had been made to the Letchworth Area Committee in September 2022 and 
this was successful.  

 Whilst the aim of the support groups are to help parents with feeding issues, it also offers 
an important social side for new parents, and helps people feel less isolated during what 
can be a difficult time.  

 There had been approximately 80-100 attendees to the course since the sessions 
resumed following lockdown, with an average of 8-10 attendees at each session.  

 The groups had been running for around 6 years, with classes taking place virtually during 
lockdown.  

 The costs of the group are covered by donations and fundraising, but due to the 
lockdowns the reserves of the group had become depleted.  

 Any fundraising is for NCT as a whole and is split 30% to the local branch and 70% to the 
national NCT body. However, any grant funding received can be ringfenced by local 
branches to be spent on schemes in the area.  

 
The following Members asked questions:  
 

 Councillor James Denselow 

 Councillor Chris Lucas  
 
In response to questions, Ms Lane advised that:  

Page 7



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

 

 This application was to support the breast-feeding support sessions, bot antenatal classes.  

 There was an NHS offer for breast-feeding support, but this was limited to one 30 minute 
online session, the support offered by NCT was in addition to this.  

 There were some support services run by Children’s Centre, but she was unaware exactly 
what was offered.  

 NCT was a charity service to provide support to all. The scheme was supported by 
donations only and it was kept this was to ensure the service was financially accessible to 
all.  

 Since drop-in session began again following lockdown there had been around 16-20 
people attending monthly, across two sessions per month. These people may be the same 
each time or some may be different.  

 
Councillor Keith Hoskins proposed and Councillor Nigel Mason seconded and, following a 
vote, it was:  
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee allocated £920 to NCT (National Childbirth Trust) North 
Herts towards funding for their breastfeeding and postnatal support group as outlined in 8.1.1-
8.1.8 of the officer’s report. 
 
The Chair invited Ms Kava Johnson to provide a presentation on behalf of the North Herts 
African and Caribbean Community in support of their grant application and advised of the 
following: 
 

 The group worked to draw together community associations, groups and individuals who 
were servicing the particular cultural needs.  

 It aimed to provide information, advice and guidance, through a programme of events, 
fundraising, history lessons and cultural experiences.  

 Worked with partners to support the African and Caribbean community in North Herts, but 
also to spread this across the wider community to celebrate incorporation and 
togetherness.  

 The long term aim was to have a central location to bring together relevant cultural 
schemes and groups.  

 Some of the previous schemes run included conversations around racial discrimination, 
crime and crime prevention awareness and the ‘Mind Your Black” poetry writing scheme. It 
was hoped these sessions could be developed further and incorporated into future 
programmes. 

 The group brought together the public and professionals, to hear directly from black 
people.  

 Talks were run online during the pandemic and were uploaded to YouTube.  

 The group had run a Windrush themed arts and craft week and had run ad-hoc workshops 
at St Mary’s Church bringing together young people and older people to learn about the 
Windrush generation.  

 There were lots of people coming forward who also wanted to share their experiences and 
stories.   

 
The following Members asked questions:  
 

 Councillor Ian Albert 

 Councillor Keith Hoskins 

 Councillor Chris Lucas  
 
In response to questions, Ms Johnson advised that:  
 

 The workshops would usually take place during the school holidays, so children were able 
to attend. The last workshop took place in the October half term.  

Page 8



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

 They had explored whether the events could be held in July at the start of the school 
holidays.  

 The £1424 was applied to from both Letchworth and Hitchin Area Committees.  

 They group had not yet worked or offered outreach sessions to nearby schools and 
colleges.  

 
Councillor Hoskins noted that if the workshops took place in July, they could be included as 
part of the Hitchin Festival programme.  
 
Councillor Chris Lucas offered support to the group in speaking to and arranging sessions at 
colleges.   
 
Councillor Keith Hoskins proposed and Councillor Chris Lucas seconded and, following a 
vote, it was:  
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee allocated £1,424 to The North Herts African and Caribbean 
Community towards funding to provide a year of free and some subsidised events and 
activities for the whole community to attend and learn about African and Caribbean History 
and Culture as outlined in 8.1.9-8.1.15 of the officer’s report.  
 
The Chair invited Ms Dani Lister and Ms Kate Adams to provide a presentation on behalf of 
the Samaritans of North Herts and Stevenage in support of their grant application and advised 
of the following: 
 

 This application was to help support fundraising for the National Walk 2023.  

 The Samaritans national listening service was run 24/7, 365 days a year and calls would 
be answered centrally, with the call being passed onto whichever volunteer was free to 
take the call. 

 Each branch of Samaritans is run individually. The Hitchin branch had recently celebrated 
its 50 year anniversary, but had been impacted by Covid.  

 There were around 100 volunteers in the local area, and there were always 2 people on 
shift at one time.  

 The branches were self-funded.  

 There was a hope that the chat services offered currently 3 days per week could be 
expanded.  

 Samaritans was a listening services and was there for anyone who needed someone to 
listen, not just for those considering suicide. The service had seen an increase in demand 
since Covid.  

 The Samaritans offer did not overlap with other support groups or organisations, as it was 
only a listening service, with volunteers not trained to offer advice but to signpost people to 
organisations would could offer more specific support.  

 The service frequently saw high demand, with often up to 100 people waiting on phone 
lines.  

 The branch had not been able to conduct community outreach during the pandemic, but 
this had been restarted in 2022, including events across Hitchin and the north Herts area. 
There had also been specific support offered at Hitchin and Stevenage train stations.  

 The events held at train stations were more about talking and engaging with people, rather 
than fundraising.  

 The branch had previously engaged with schools, but this had stopped during the 
pandemic and there was a focus to re-start this engagement again.  

 
The following Members asked questions:  
 

 Councillor James Denselow 

 Councillor Chris Lucas  
 

Page 9



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

In response to questions, Ms Lister and Ms Adams advised that:  
 

 The planning for the National Walk was currently in the early days, as the north Herts 
branch had inherited the organisation of the event from another branch.  

 It was expected there would be a maximum of 200 volunteers doing different length walks 
and it would be a paid entry fee event. There would be fundraising ongoing alongside this 
to support the event.  

 The start and finish points, as well as arrangements for water and refreshments needed to 
be confirmed.  

 The funds raised would go to the national organisation and then be reinvested into the 
local branches, but it was also important to highlight the local branch.  

 The organisers would look to engage with other partners to help support the National Walk 
event.  

 The group hoped to be able to engage better with young people and noted that the 
national organisation attended festivals to encourage young people in attendance to talk 
about issues.  

 It was not always appropriate for young people to talk on the phone about issues, and 
often they find it difficult talking to friends and family. The new online chat offered was 
used more by younger people seeking support.  

 
Councillor Keith Hoskins noted that this event could be included as part of the Hitchin Festival 
programme and that groups in the area with experience of running similar events would be 
able to offer support.  
 
Councillor Richard Thake noted that he was a governor at Hitchin Boys School and would be 
happy to facilitate a visit. There had been clear immense pressure put on young people over 
the last couple of years and it was important that appropriate support was offered and 
Samaritans was an established and respected organisation offering support.  
 
Councillor Nigel Mason noted that the issues faced were only likely to increase given the 
economic climate.  
 
Councillor Richard Thake proposed and Councillor Nigel Mason seconded and, following a 
vote, it was:  
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee allocated £1,200 to Samaritans of North Herts and 
Stevenage towards funding for their Samaritans National Walk 2023 as outlined in 8.1.16-
8.1.20 of the officer’s report. 

 
REASON FOR DECISIONS: The awarding of financial assistance to voluntary organisations 
and the use of discretionary spending allows the Committee to further the aims of the Council 
Plan. 
 

97 AIR QUALITY UPDATE  
 
Audio recording – 56 minutes 40 seconds 
 
A verbal update was provided by the Environmental Health Manager regarding Air Quality in 
Hitchin, which included the following:  
 

 Due to the Covid pandemic, and staffing issues within the department, it had been 3 years 
since a representative was able to address the Committee.  

 The draft report circulated to Members had now been confirmed as final by DEFRA.  

 Air quality is not necessarily a local issue, it can depend on the wind flow and North Herts 
will be impacted by the emissions of other areas, as well as North Herts affecting other 
areas.  

Page 10



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

 Members had previously raised concerns that the air quality monitoring would be stopped 
in the area, but this was not the case and there was a legal requirement on the Council to 
monitor.  

 If after a number of years where the monitored emissions amount is less than the 
guidelines, then the guidance from DEFRA is that the location no longer qualifies to be 
required for monitoring.  

 The Air Quality Monitoring is a separate requirement under the Environment Act and 
monitoring of these sites will continue.  

 There were two ways in which the Council monitored air quality. Firstly, through 
Automated Plants, but these were coming to the end of their expected life and there would 
be additional costs if monitoring was still required at these sites.  

 Secondly, was via Passive Diffusion Tubes, which were stuck on lampposts around the 
district and were changed manually by Officers. These will continue until legislation 
changes and these are no longer required. The location of these are reviewed frequently 
and there is a review ongoing now by Environmental Health Officers.  

 No other areas in the district had ever breached the threshold for air quality pollution.  

 If Members had a specific area they wanted to be monitored, they could inform the 
Environmental Health team and this could be explored, though not all sites would be 
suitable.  

 
The following Members asked questions:  
 

 Councillor Richard Thake 

 Councillor Clare Billing 

 Councillor James Denselow 

 Councillor Ian Albert 
 
In response to questions, the Environmental Health Manager advised:  
 

 The requirement to monitor, but the lack of capacity to insist on changes, had not 
changed, other than where there was a specific local cause of the problem.  

 The district Council has the requirement to monitor, but County were responsible for the 
Highways and there were link roads running outside of the area.  

 As part of the recently adopted Local Plan there were considerations and requirements 
placed on developers to require them to monitor air quality, before during and after 
construction.   

 Where the district Council had the ability to control road traffic, it was usually in places 
where there was insufficient traffic for the Council to make an influential difference.  

 With planning applications where there is a foreseeable air quality issue, the 
Environmental Health team are consulted and will provide a response.  

 It was not possible for the district Council to impose conditions around schools to prevent 
car idling, as the Highways were a County issue. The district Council can make 
representations to County to encourage this.  

 Where schools in adopt the campaign they encourage students to remind parents of the 
dangers, and this is something that could be supported by the district Council, but it could 
not be imposed.  

 He was unsure of the cost of a single air quality monitoring station. 

 When previous equipment was installed there was not a repair contract included with 
these. This would be included for future contract procurement, so that expenditure would 
be planned, rather than one off payments.  

 The EcoStars scheme was developed by another Local Authority and North Herts pay a 
small royalty to be part of the scheme. TRL had been sourced to liaise with businesses 
and commercial enterprises which have a vehicle fleet, which are generally diesel van 
fleets. The scheme will then present policies which can be adopted to reduce costs for the 
business, as well as reducing emissions, through training and development.  

Page 11



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

 All relevant contracts that North Herts hold have been approached and more are joining 
the scheme.  

 The scheme itself was a star based system, with 1 being lowest and 5 being highest. One 
company had reached 5 star status, with many others regularly performing at 4 star level.  

 He was not personally aware of any key locations for air quality monitoring, but could 
provide Members with some background information, on top of that included within the 
most recent report. The air pollution across the district was relatively low compared to 
neighbouring authorities.  

 The A1 rarely caused pollution issues, but the A1 roundabout outside Letchworth may be 
a good monitoring site, due to traffic build up in this area, as would the roads out of Hitchin 
towards Letchworth. 

 Due to Covid the EcoStars scheme did not start until 2022 and was due to run through to 
February 2023. There was a quarter 4 report due soon from TLR and specific information 
could be requested by Members to included in this.  

 Future attendance would depend on staffing issues within the department, but it was 
hoped a regular update could be provided at future meetings with relevant notice.   

 
98 INFORMATION NOTE - CHURCHGATE SHOPPING CENTRE UPDATE  

 
Audio recording – 75 minutes 38 seconds 
 
The Chair led an update on Churchgate Shopping Centre and the ongoing consultation which 
was the subject of the Town Talk which preceded the meeting.  
 
Councillor Keith Hoskins noted that the response to the consultation so far had been positive, 
with over 560 responses received in 3 days of the consultation being live.  
 
The Chair noted that some issues had been raised by tenants at the Town Talk regarding 
Brown and Lee, as well as some wider concerns about the proposed developments. The aim 
was to have a regular report provided as part of the Hitchin Committee, with the next report to 
have more detail provided on the outcome of the consultation.  
 

99 GRANTS AND COMMUNITY UPDATE  
 
Audio recording – 77 minutes 22 seconds  
 
The Assistant Community Engagement Officer presented the report entitled ‘Grants and 
Community Update’ and advised Members of the following:  
 

 There had been events taking place to support Local Democracy Week and Parliament 
Week, with some Councillors attending these, which included Q&As and school 
assemblies.  

 There were plans underway to expand these sessions for next year with a view to make 
them more regular events.  

 Recent surgeries had taken place as usual, but had been located under the Churchgate 
arch to promote the ongoing consultation work.  

 The Community Engagement Team were planning the Holocaust Memorial Day event on 
27 January 2023.  

 There was support being shared on Council platforms regarding the cost of living crisis 
and following attendance at the Churches Together event, it was advised that at least one 
building would be open every day for people requiring somewhere to stay warm.  

 The would be an infographic produced to highlight support and services available.  

 The Snowman Trail had proved popular and demonstrated the role art can play in Hitchin, 
bringing together young and old people, and helping with attracting tourists to the town. 
There would be a photograph competition in January, to extend the Trail into the new year.  

Page 12



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

 The Chair’s Volunteer Awards had changed to the Herts Hero Awards, with the same five 
categories for nominations. The team would be promoting this over coming weeks and the 
final would take place in the Council Chamber.  

 They had provided support for the Hitchin Christmas tree festival and were working closely 
with Councillors to support the Farmers on Christmas Lights Tour event.  

 Updates had been received from previous successful grant applicants, including the 
Hitchin Allotments and ‘Home is Where the Hert Is’.  

 
The Chair noted that the sessions which took place in schools and the Holocaust Memorial 
Day event were two further legacies of Councillor Judi Billing at North Herts.  
 
Councillor Richard Thake noted that Mr Paul Dee, who had previously come to the Hitchin 
Area Committee for grant funding for an allotment scheme, was now looking to extend these 
sessions across the district and had applied for HCC Locality Budget funding to support this.  
 
Councillor Keith Hoskins commented that the increase in community cohesion since the 
pandemic had been astonishing and this was attributable to the work of the Officer.  
 
In response to questions from Councillor Hoskins and Councillor Nigel Mason, the Assistant 
Community Engagement Officer advised that the grant funds remaining after the last meeting 
of the civic year could be rolled over into next year. He noted that he was in talks with a couple 
of exciting projects for the new year and was aware of the funds available for the group to 
allocate.  
 
Councillor Ian Albert, as Chair, proposed and Councillor Keith Hoskins seconded and, 
following a vote, it was:  
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee endorsed the actions taken by the Community Engagement 
team to promote greater community capacity and well-being for Hitchin. 
 
REASONS FOR DECISION: 
 
(1) To ensure the Members are kept informed of the work of the Community Engagement 

Team.  
 
(2) This report is intended to inform Members of the financial resources available to the 

Committee. It draws attention to the current budgetary situation by assisting in the 
effective financial management of the Area Committee’s budget. This ensures that all 
actions are performed in line with the Authority’s Financial Regulations, the Council’s 
Constitution, and the guidance of the Grants Policy as agreed by Cabinet in July 2021. 

 
100 WARD MATTERS AND OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS - MEMBERS' REPORTS  

 
Audio recording – 86 minutes 45 seconds 
 
There were no updates from Members on Ward Matter or Outside Organisations. 
 

101 POSSIBLE AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
Audio recording – 88 minutes 28 seconds 
 
The Chair suggested that an update on Charnwood House would be provided at the next 
meeting of the Committee.  
 
The Chair requested that any further suggested items for future meetings be made to the 
Committee Services Team.  
 

Page 13



Thursday, 8th December, 2022  

 
 
The meeting closed at 9.20 pm 

 
Chair 

 

Page 14



HITCHIN COMMITTEE 28th March 2023 

 

 
*PART 1 – PUBLIC DOCUMENT 
 

 
TITLE OF REPORT:  GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE 
 
REPORT OF: THE POLICY & COMMUNITIES MANAGER 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER: COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
CURRENT COUNCIL PRIORITIES: PEOPLE FIRST, SUSTAINABILITY, A BRIGHTER 
FUTURE TOGETHER  
 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 To advise the Members on the current expenditure and balances of the Committee Grant 
budgets. 
 

1.2 To bring to Members’ attention recent requests received for Committee grant funding, 
made by community groups and local organisations. 
 

1.3 To advise of the activities and schemes with which Community Engagement officers have 
been involved in. 
 

1.4 To bring to Members’ attention some important community-based activities that will take 
place during the next few months. 
 
 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Committee considers allocating funding from their discretionary community 

budget towards the projects below: 
 
2.2 £932 to Buzzworks resources to help deliver educational sessions as outlined in 

paragraphs 8.1.1-8.1.4 of this report. 
 

2.3 £459 to Friends of Whitehill and Highbury Schools towards four gazebos as outlined in 
paragraphs 8.1.5-8.1.9 of this report. 
 

2.4 £2,500 to Red Media Love CIC towards a Singh Sabha football exhibition as outlined in 
paragraphs 8.1.10-8.1.15 of this report. 
 

2.5 That the Committee agrees that any unspent funds from the 2022/23 financial year be  
           allocated to the Hitchin Area Committee budget for the 2023/24 period. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



2.6 That the Committee be recommended to endorse the actions taken by the Community 
Engagement Team to promote greater community capacity and well-being for Hitchin. 
 

 

 
 
 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To ensure Members are kept informed of the work of the Community Engagement Team. 
 
3.2 This report is intended to inform Members of the financial resources available to the 

Committee. It draws attention to the current budgetary situation by assisting in the 
effective financial management of the Area Committee’s budget. This ensures that all 
actions are performed in line with the Authority’s Financial Regulations, the Council’s 
Constitution, and the guidance of the Grants Policy as agreed by Cabinet in July 2021. 

 
3.3 The awarding of financial assistance to voluntary organisations and the use of 

discretionary spending allows the Committee to further the aims of the Council Plan. 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1. There are no alternative options being proposed other than those detailed within the text 

of this report. However, during debate at committee, Members may wish to comment 
and offer additional views on any of the items included within this report. 
 

5. CONSULTATION WITH RELEVANT MEMBERS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 
 
5.1 Consultation with Members has occurred in connection with the allocation of funds for    

Community Projects. 
 
5.2 Consultation with the respective officers and external bodies/groups has taken place 

regarding funding proposals for Committee Funds. 
 
6. FORWARD PLAN 
 
6.1 This report does not contain a recommendation on a key Executive decision and has 

therefore not been referred to in the Forward Plan. 
 
7. BACKGROUND 
 
7.1 With reference to the Council’s Constitution, Section 9.3 Area Committees will include 

budgets for the purpose of providing grants and discretionary budgets that may be used 
within the area of the Committee for economic, social and environmental well-being.  

 
7.2 Members are asked to note the information detailed in Appendix 1. Hitchin Area 

Committee Budget spreadsheet, which relates to the Area Committee budget balances 
for 2022/23. The spreadsheet also details pre-allocated sums carried forward from the 
previous financial years, including balances and past expenditure. 

Page 16



8. RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS  
  
 Councillors are at liberty to consider any amount requested in a grant application as long 

as the Hitchin Area Committee has sufficient funds in the 2022/2023 budget. 
 
 
8.1 Grant Applications 
 
8.1.1  

Applicant Buzzworks 
Project Resources to help deliver educational sessions. 
Sum requested £932 
Total project cost £1,035 
Match funding  £103 fundraising 
Previous support 2019: £915 Hitchin Area Grant towards furniture to 

accommodate school visits 
NHDC Policy met Yes 
Council objectives People First 

A brighter future together 
Sustainability 
 
  

8.1.2 Buzzworks main activities are educational visits, honey production for sale on their 
market stall and holding open and experience days. Visits have a minimal charge, as the 
group aim for visits to be accessible to all.  

 
 
8.1.3 The group would like funding towards resources that are used for educational visits. 

Items they would like to purchase include: 

• Gardening gloves 

• Microscope 

• Printed posters 

• Flower displays 

• UV dark box 

• Camera 

• Mirrors 
 
8.1.4 The group believe that educating the community, especially young people about the 
 environment, in particular saving and protecting the bees is imperative to ensure the
 future of our planet. Buzzworks always aim to work in a sustainable way, recycling and
 reusing materials and are very resourceful, therefore having very little waste.  
 
 
 
  

Page 17



8.1.5 
Applicant Friends of Whitehill and Highbury Schools 
Project Four gazebos. 
Sum requested £459 
Total project cost £611.92 
Match funding  £153 fundraising 
Previous support No 
NHDC Policy met Yes 
Council objectives People First 

Sustainability 
 

8.1.6 Friends of Whitehill and Highbury Schools (FOWHS) organise social events for the 
children of Whitehill and Highbury Schools to help build a community between the two 
schools whilst also raising much-needed funds. 

 
8.1.7 The group would like four robust gazebos and sets of weights for use at events at both 

schools to provide shade/shelter for children/volunteers. They are purchasing one set 
themselves and would like help with funds to purchase three more sets of gazebos and 
weights. Their existing gazebos are no longer fit for purpose due to extensive use. 

 
8.1.8 The gazebos would be made available to both schools to use during the schools’ day 

and for school-led events as needed, and also to community groups (eg Scouts) who 
use the school sites for their events and activities. 

 
8.1.9 FOWHS have researched various options by seeking feedback and recommendations 
 from other similar organisations to decide on the gazebos they wish to purchase. The 
 items chosen are robust and have the option of purchasing replacement parts, should
 this be necessary – rather than having to replace the whole item, which improves 
 sustainability. 
  
 
8.1.10 

Applicant Red Media Love CIC 
Project Singh Sabha football visual exhibition. 
Sum requested £2,500 
Total project cost £3,500 
Match funding  £1,000 fundraising 
Previous support 2022: £2,480 Hitchin area Committee grant towards 

visual exhibition 
NHDC Policy met Yes 
Council objectives People First 

 
8.1.11 North Herts has a huge south Asian community who have paved a life for themselves in 

this area since they first migrated here in the 1960s. They integrated themselves and 
their families well by adjusting and embracing the local culture whilst still retaining their 
strong connections from their respective homelands. One way the young south Asian 
men did this is through football.  

  

Page 18



8.1.12 During this time, the second generation growing up in the area felt isolated from their 
peers due to their cultural differences which they felt hindered their progression. This led 
the young men to approach their local Gurdwara, Singh Sabha Hitchin to help support 
them. They were also sponsored by local business S&K Stores. They created an A, B & 
C team which went onto winning tournaments and leagues across the UK. This team 
has spanned two generations with the last games taking place in the early 2000s.  

 
8.1.13  The funding would go towards high quality filming of key members of the team and 

hearing their stories first hand. Red Media Love also have old footage and images which 
will be used as reference throughout.  

 
8.1.14  Red Media Love are hoping to film the individual stories and take portraits of the 

participants to be displayed at North Herts Museum. The full content will be used across 
social media with the documentary being available on YouTube. They are also talking to 
the local Gurdwara about hosting screenings there.   

 
8.1.15 At the time of writing this report, Red Media Love have had preliminary discussions with 

North Herts Museum about holding the exhibition in their gallery, but the venue has not 
yet been confirmed. If the Committee approve this application it will be an in-principle 
allocation only until the venue has been confirmed and the necessary consent and 
permissions are in place. Without the assurances of these the proposed exhibition 
cannot take place. 

 
 
8.2 Community Engagement Update 
 

 
8.2.1 Community Engagement Team 
 

The team have continued to engage and network with local community groups and 
initiatives. This involved: 

 

• Co-ordinating support for asylum seekers in Hitchin and Baldock. 

• Co-ordinating and hosting the North Herts Heroes Awards 2023. The event can 
be viewed here: North Herts Heroes Awards 2023 - YouTube 

• Supporting North Herts CVS and Letchworth Heritage Foundation with planning 
the All About Us Community Conference, an event for groups districtwide. All 
About Us Community Conference Tickets, Thu 23 Mar 2023 at 09:30 | Eventbrite 

• The team co-ordinated an event for Holocaust Memorial Day which was on 27th 
January 2023. The recording can be viewed online North Herts Council marks 
Holocaust Memorial Day | North Herts Council (north-herts.gov.uk). 

• Continuing to share and disseminate information on social media and to mailing 
lists, keeping in touch with the community, voluntary, statutory and non-statutory 
agencies. 

• Facilitating NHC Councillors' Community Surgeries. 
 
 
  

Page 19

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Is96lq7_IDA
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/all-about-us-community-conference-tickets-545893701757
https://www.eventbrite.co.uk/e/all-about-us-community-conference-tickets-545893701757
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/north-herts-council-marks-holocaust-memorial-day-0
https://www.north-herts.gov.uk/north-herts-council-marks-holocaust-memorial-day-0


8.3 Highways Matters 
 

8.3.1 This section is included within the community update report for each committee cycle to 
facilitate debate and enable appropriate feedback on any of the proposed or listed 
Highways related schemes.   

 
8.3.2 Any new proposals or revised schemes will be forwarded to the respective Herts County 

Councillor for consideration who will in turn report back and advise the Committee 
accordingly. 

 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  Sections 9.8.1 (a) and 9.8.1 (b) of the Council’s Constitution in respect of the Area 

Committees’ Terms of Reference, notes the following: To allocate discretionary budgets 
within the terms determined by the Council and to allocate devolved budgets and 
activities within the terms determined by the Council. This is outlined in the current Grant 
Policy agreed by Cabinet in July 2021. Section 9.8.2 (h) of the Constitution in respect of 
Area Committees’ Terms of Reference notes that they may: Establish and maintain 
relationships with outside bodies/voluntary organisations operating specifically with the 
area including, where appropriate, the provision of discretionary grant aid/financial 
support etc. but excluding grants for district-wide activities. 

 
9.2 Chapter 1, s1-8 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a General Power of Competence 

which gives local authorities the powers to do anything provided that it is not specifically 
prohibited in legislation. 

 
9.3 Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides specific authority for the Council 

to incur expenditure on anything which is in the interests of and will bring direct benefit 
to its area. This includes a charity or other body operating for public service. 

 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 As outlined in Appendix 1. Hitchin Area Committee Budget spreadsheet. 
 
10.2    The 2022/23 base budget was £11,000, with £775 carried forward from the 2021/22 

budget, giving a total budget for the year of £11,775. Grants awarded to date total 
£6,679. This leaves a budget available of £5,096. 

 
10.3 The grant applications for this meeting total £3,891 and if Members agree the grants 

outlined in this report this will leave a balance of £1,205 to carry forward into the 2023/24 
budget. 

            
  

Page 20



11. RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no relevant risk entries that have been recorded on Pentana Risk, the 

Council’s performance and risk system. Individual events should have their own risk 
assessments in place to mitigate any health and safety issues. Whenever a request for 
grant funding for equipment is received, the recipient of the funding will be advised to 
obtain insurance for the item to avoid a repeat request for funding in the event of the 
equipment being stolen or damaged. There are no pertinent risk implications for the 
Authority associated with any items within this report. 

 
 
12. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty, public bodies must, in the exercise of their 

functions, give due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those 
who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 
 

12.2 Area Committee funding is awarded to community groups that clearly demonstrate 
positive impact on the community and wider environment. The projects outlined in this 
report seek to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations. 

 
13. SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. The Social Value Act and “go local” requirements do not apply to this report. 
 
14. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 The grant requested by Buzzworks would help educate about the environment. 
 
 
 
 
15. HUMAN RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 There are no pertinent Human Resource implications associated with any items within 
 this report. 
 
16. APPENDICES 
 
16.1 Appendix 1. Hitchin Area Committee Budget spreadsheet 
 
  

Page 21



17. CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
17.1 Author:  Becca Edwards, Assistant Community Engagement Officer 

Email:  becca.edwards@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4230 
 

Contributors: Reuben Ayavoo, Policy & Communities Manager 
   Email: reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4212 
 

Georgina Chapman, Policy and Strategy Team Leader 
   Email: Georgina.Chapman@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4121  
 

Claire Morgan, Community Engagement Team Leader 
   Email: Claire.morgan@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4226 
 

Anne Miller, Assistant Accountant   
  Email: Anne.Miller@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4374 

 
  Yvette Roberts, Legal Officer 
  Email: Yvette.roberts@north-herts.gov.uk  ext. 4310 
 

   Tim Everitt, Performance & Risk Officer 
Email: tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4646 
 

 
18. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
18.1 Review of Policies and Procedures for Financial Assistance to Voluntary and Community 

Organisations, November 2002.  
 

18.2 Review of Grant Policy Cabinet July 2021. 

Page 22

mailto:becca.edwards@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Georgina.Chapman@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Claire.morgan@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Anne.Miller@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Yvette.roberts@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk


HITCHIN AREA COMMITTEE BUDGET  2022/23

SUMMARY/ TOTALS Funding Allocated Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget

Budget brought forward from 

2021/22
£775 £775 £775 £0 £0

Budget 2022/23
£11,000 £5,904 £5,904 £0

£5,096

Total £11,775 £6,679 £6,679 £0 £5,096

Funding Allocated Date Spent Outstanding Unallocated

Funds Brought Forward from 

2021/22
£775 £775 28-Jun-22 £775 £0 Total Grant £1,035 - £260 allocated from 2022/23 

base budget

Total £775 £775 £775 £0 £0

Funding Allocated
Date 

Allocated
Spent Outstanding

Unallocated 

Budget
Comments

2022/23 Base Budget
£11,000 £260 28-Jun-22 £260 £0 Total Grant £1,035 - £775 allocated from 2021/22 

carry forward budget

£1,000 28-Jun-22 £1,000 £0

£1,100 28-Jun-22 £1,100 £0

£920 08-Dec-22 £920 £0

£1,424 08-Dec-22 £1,424 £0

£1,200 08-Dec-22 £1,200 £0

Total £11,000 £5,904 £5,904 £0 £5,096

Project

Back2Schoolival CIC - volunteering/work 

experience for students

Samaritans of North Herts & Stevenage - 

national walk 2023

Project

Back2Schoolival CIC - volunteering/work 

experience for students

PoetsIN - Wellbeing workshops 

Hitchin Fun Club - holiday clubs

NCT North  - breastfeeding and postnatal 

support

North Herts African & Caribbean 

Community - beyond Black History month 

events

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES - 8 DECEMBER 2022
	Minutes

	8 GRANT APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNITY UPDATE
	Appendix 1. Hitchin Area Committee Budget spreadsheet


